COPLEY-FAIRLAWN CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Regular Meeting Copley High School Auditorium February 21, 2023 5:30 p.m.

Steve Doss, President, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

John Wheadon, Treasurer, called the roll and the following were present:

Jim Borchik - absent Paul Cevasco Steve Doss Beth Hertz Paula Lynn - absent

2023-10 A. <u>Agenda</u>

It was moved by Mr. Cevasco, seconded by Mrs. Hertz, to adopt the agenda for the February 21, 2023 regular meeting, as presented.

AYES: Cevasco, Hertz, Doss NAYS: None

B. <u>Recognition</u>

<u>Student of the Month – January, 2023</u> Charles Luecke - Arrowhead Primary Corinne Russo - Fort Island Primary Ruby Neff - Herberich Primary Elliana Ilko - Copley-Fairlawn Middle School Rachel Young - Copley High School Charles Franchetti - Copley High School Student-Athlete

(Five Minute Recess)

C <u>Recognition of the Public</u>

The Copley-Fairlawn City School District Board of Education feels that while public participation in Board meetings is not required, it is a valuable way to receive input from community members. The Board will not enter into debate or discussion on any matter brought forward, instead the information will be forwarded to the proper individual for possible follow up. Those who wish to participate in the public comments section of the agenda must sign in on the sheet available at the entrance to the meeting. Those signed up to address the Board should limit their comments to a maximum of three minutes until the total time of 30 minutes is used according to Policy BDDH (Also KD) and Ohio Revised Code 121.22 and 3313.20.

2023-11

C. <u>Treasurer's Business</u>

It was moved by Mrs. Hertz, seconded by Mr. Cevasco to approve the following actions, upon the recommendation of the Treasurer:

1. Minutes

Approve the minutes of the Board of Education's organizational/regular meeting held January 10, 2023 and the Special/Work Session meeting held on January 19, 2023, as presented.

2. Financial Statement

Approve the financial statement for the month of January, 2023, as presented.

3. <u>Resolution Accepting Amounts and Rates</u>

Adopt the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Officer of the Board of Education has provided the Alternative Tax Budget, for the next succeeding fiscal year commencing July 1, 2023; and

WHEREAS, The Budget Commission of Summit County, Ohio, has certified its action together with an estimate by the County Fiscal Officer of the rate of each tax necessary to be levied by this Board, and what part thereof is without, and what part within the ten mill tax limitation;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Education of the Copley-Fairlawn City School District, Summit County, Ohio, that the amounts and rates, as determined by the Budget Commission in its certification, be and the same are hereby accepted; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that there be and is hereby levied on the tax duplicate of said School District the rate of each tax necessary to be levied within and without the ten mill limitation as follows:

Fund	Maximum Tax		Amount to be Received	
	Inside	Outside	Inside	Outside
General Fund	5.10	56.57	\$5,061,506	\$29,974,826
Bone Retirement		2.98		\$ 2,957,509
Permanent Improvement		2.00		\$ 1,715,557
Total	5.10	61.55	\$5,061,506	\$34,647,892

and be it further

RESOLVED, that the Treasurer of this Board be and he is hereby directed to certify a copy of this Resolution to the County Auditor of said County.

4. <u>Professional Service Contract – Copley-Fairlawn Middle School Athletic</u> <u>Facility</u>

Authorize the Treasurer and Superintendent to enter into a contract for professional design services with J.T. Sauer & Associates, LLC (JTSA Sports) and Gateway Engineering Inc., as presented.

5. <u>Professional Service Contract – District Wide Improvements Project</u>

Authorize the Treasurer and Superintendent to enter into a contract for professional design services with Fanning/Howey Associates Inc., as presented.

6. <u>Participation in the Ohio Schools Council Cooperative School Bus Purchasing</u> <u>Program</u> Adopt the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Copley-Fairlawn City Board of Education wishes to advertise and receive bids for the purchase of one (1) school bus with wheelchair lift and two (2) unitized transit school bus chassis and bodies.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Copley-Fairlawn City Board of Education authorizes the Ohio Schools Council to advertise and receive bids on behalf of said Board as per the specifications submitted for the cooperative purchase of one (1) school bus with wheelchair lift and two (2) unitized transit school bus chassis and bodies.

Permanent improvement funds will be used to purchase the busses.

7. Bond Resolution

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS IN THE AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED \$50,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF RENOVATING, REPAIRING, IMPROVING, AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS AND ADDITIONS TO EXISTING SCHOOL BUILDINGS, ATHLETIC COMPLEX FACILITIES, AND INFRASTRUCTURE; FURNISHING AND EQUIPPING THE SAME; AND IMPROVING THE SITES THEREOF; AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING RELATED MATTERS

WHEREAS, at the election held on November 8, 2022, on the proposition of issuing

bonds of the School District in the amount of \$50,000,000 for the purpose stated in the title of this

Resolution (the "Project") and levying taxes outside the ten-mill limitation to pay the principal of

and interest on such bonds, the electors of the School District approved the issuance of such bonds

with the requisite majority of those voting on the proposition voting in favor thereof; and

WHEREAS, the Treasurer of the Board (the "Treasurer") has certified to this Board that the

estimated life of the Project that is to be financed with the proceeds of said bonds exceeds five

years, and the maximum maturity of such bonds is 30 years; and

WHEREAS, it is now deemed necessary to issue and sell not to exceed \$50,000,000 of

such bonds for the Project under authority of the general laws of the State of Ohio, including Ohio

Revised Code Chapter 133;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE COPLEY-FAIRLAWN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, SUMMIT COUNTY, OHIO THAT:

<u>Section 1.</u> It is declared necessary to issue bonds of the School District for the purpose described in the title of this Resolution in the principal sum of not to exceed \$50,000,000, or such lesser amount as shall be determined by the Treasurer and certified to this Board, which bonds shall be designated as "Copley-Fairlawn City School District, Summit County, Ohio School Facilities Construction and Improvement Bonds, Series 2023," or as otherwise designated by the Treasurer (the "Bonds"). The Bonds may be issued in one or more series.

<u>Section 2.</u> The Bonds shall be issued as fully registered bonds in such denominations as shall be determined by the Treasurer, but not exceeding the principal amount of Bonds maturing on any one date; shall be numbered as determined by the Treasurer; and shall have such final terms as shall be determined by the Treasurer and set forth in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer provided for herein.

Section 3. The Treasurer is authorized and directed to execute on behalf of the School District a Certificate of Fiscal Officer Relating to Terms of Bonds (the "Certificate of

Fiscal Officer") setting forth the aggregate principal amount and the final terms of the Bonds, which aggregate principal amount and terms, subject to the limitations set forth in this Resolution, shall be as determined by the Treasurer. The Certificate of Fiscal Officer shall indicate the dated date for the Bonds, the dates on which interest on the Bonds is to be paid (the "Interest Payment Dates"), the purchase price for the Bonds (which shall be not less than 97% of the aggregate principal amount thereof), the maturity schedule for the Bonds (provided that the maximum maturity date of the Bonds shall not exceed 30 years), the interest rates for the Bonds (provided that the true interest cost for all Bonds in the aggregate shall not exceed 6.50%), the optional and mandatory redemption provisions, if any, and such other terms not inconsistent with this Resolution as the Treasurer shall deem appropriate.

<u>Section 4.</u> The Bonds shall be issued with interest payable semiannually on each Interest Payment Date until the principal sum is paid or provision has been duly made therefor (the "Current Interest Bonds") or with interest compounded on each Interest Payment Date but payable only at maturity (the "Capital Appreciation Bonds") in such proportions as shall be set forth in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months unless otherwise determined by the Treasurer. Unless otherwise determined by the Treasurer, the Current Interest Bonds shall be in the denominations of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and the Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be in the denominations on the date of their issuance and delivery equal to the principal amount which, when interest is accrued and compounded thereon, beginning on the date of delivery to the Original Purchaser (as defined hereinbelow), and each Interest Payment Date thereafter, will equal \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof at maturity.

<u>Section 5.</u> The Current Interest Bonds shall be subject to optional and mandatory redemption prior to stated maturity as provided in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer. If optional redemption of the Current Interest Bonds at a redemption price exceeding 100% is to take place on any date on which a mandatory redemption of the Current Interest Bonds of the same maturity will take place, the Current Interest Bonds to be redeemed by optional redemption shall be selected by the Bond Registrar (as defined hereinbelow) prior to the selection of the Current Interest Bonds to be redeemed at par on the same date.

When partial redemption is authorized, the Bond Registrar shall select Current Interest Bonds or portions thereof by lot within a maturity in such manner as the Bond Registrar may determine, provided, however, that the portion of any Current Interest Bond so selected shall be in the amount of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (unless otherwise determined by the Treasurer).

The notice of the call for redemption of Current Interest Bonds shall identify (i) by designation, letters, numbers or other distinguishing marks, the Current Interest Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, (ii) the redemption price to be paid, (iii) the date fixed for redemption, and (iv) the place or places where the amounts due upon redemption are payable. From and after the specified redemption date interest on the Current Interest Bonds (or portions thereof) called for redemption shall cease to accrue. Such notice shall be sent by first class mail at least 30 days prior to the redemption date to each registered holder of the Current Interest Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown in the Bond Register (as defined hereinbelow) on the 15th day preceding the date of mailing. Failure to receive such notice or any defect therein shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Current Interest Bond.

<u>Section 6.</u> The Bonds shall express upon their faces the purpose for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Resolution. The Bonds shall be executed by the President of the Board (the "President") and by the Treasurer in their official capacities, provided that either or both of their signatures may be a facsimile signature. No Bond shall be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution unless and until a certificate of authentication, as printed on the Bond, is signed by the Bond Registrar as authenticating agent. Authentication by the Bond Registrar shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly issued and delivered under this Resolution and is entitled to the security and benefit of this Resolution. The certificate of authentication may be signed by any officer or officers of the Bond Registrar or by such other person acting as an agent of the Bond Registrar as shall be approved by the Treasurer on behalf of the School District. It shall not be necessary that the same authorized person sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds.

<u>Section 7.</u> The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America without deduction for the services of the Bond Registrar as paying agent. The principal of the Bonds shall be payable upon presentation and surrender of

the Bonds at the principal office of the Bond Registrar. Each Bond shall bear interest from the later of the date thereof, or the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, unless the date of authentication of any Bond is less than 15 days prior to an Interest Payment Date, in which case interest shall accrue from such Interest Payment Date. Interest on any Current Interest Bond shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name the Bond is registered, at the close of business on the 15th day next preceding that Interest Payment Date (the "Record Date") (unless such date falls on a non-business day, in which case the Record Date shall be the preceding business day), on the Bond Register at the address appearing therein.

Any interest on any Bond which is payable, but is not punctually paid or provided for, on any Interest Payment Date (herein called "Defaulted Interest") shall forthwith cease to be payable to the registered owner on the relevant Record Date by virtue of having been such owner and such Defaulted Interest shall be paid to the registered owner in whose name the Bond is registered at the close of business on a date (the "Special Record Date") to be fixed by the Bond Registrar, such Special Record Date to be not more than 15 nor less than 10 days prior to the date of proposed payment. The Bond Registrar shall cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, first class postage prepaid, to each Bondholder, at such Bondholder's address as it appears in the Bond Register, not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date, and may, in its discretion, cause a similar notice to be published once in a newspaper in each place where Bonds are payable, but such publication shall not be a condition precedent to the establishment of such Special Record Date.

Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Section, each Bond delivered by the Bond Registrar upon transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry the rights to interest accrued and unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such other Bond.

The Treasurer is authorized and directed to serve as authenticating agent, Section 8. bond registrar, transfer agent, and paying agent (collectively, the "Bond Registrar") for the Bonds or to execute on behalf of the Board a Bond Registrar Agreement with such bank or other appropriate financial institution as shall be acceptable to the Treasurer and the Original Purchaser, pursuant to which such bank or financial institution shall agree to serve as the Bond Registrar for the Bonds. If at any time the Bond Registrar shall be unable or unwilling to serve as such, or the Treasurer in such officer's discretion shall determine that it would be in the best interest of the School District for such functions to be performed by another party, or the Treasurer determines it necessary and appropriate to appoint a co-Bond Registrar in addition to the Bond Registrar, the Treasurer may, and is authorized and directed to, enter into an agreement with a national banking association or other appropriate institution experienced in providing such services, to perform the services required of the Bond Registrar hereunder. Each such successor Bond Registrar (or co-Bond Registrar) shall promptly advise all bondholders of its identity and address. So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the School District shall cause to be maintained and kept by the Bond Registrar, at the office of the Bond Registrar, all books and records necessary for the registration, exchange and transfer of Bonds as provided in this Section (the "Bond Register"). Subject to the provisions hereof, the person in whose name any Bond shall be registered on the Bond Register shall be regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes. Payment of or on account of the principal of and interest on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of that person. Neither the School District nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but the registration may be changed as herein provided. All payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon the Bonds, including the interest thereon, to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid.

Any Bond, upon presentation and surrender at the office of the Bond Registrar, together with a request for exchange signed by the registered owner or by a person authorized by the owner to do so by a power of attorney in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, may be exchanged for Bonds of the same form and of any authorized denomination or denominations equal in the aggregate to the unmatured principal amount of the Bonds surrendered, and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date.

A Bond may be transferred only on the Bond Register upon presentation and surrender thereof at the office of the Bond Registrar, together with an assignment executed by the registered owner or by a person authorized by the owner to do so by a power of attorney in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. Upon that transfer, the Bond Registrar shall complete, authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of any authorized denomination or denominations equal in the aggregate to the unmatured principal amount of the Bonds surrendered, and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date. The School District and the Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange (i) any Bond during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 days before the day of mailing of a notice of redemption of Bonds, and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing, or (ii) any Bonds selected for redemption, in whole or in part, following the date of such mailing.

In all cases in which Bonds are exchanged or transferred hereunder, the School District shall cause to be executed and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. The exchange or transfer shall be without charge to the owner; except that the School District and the Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to the exchange or transfer. The School District or the Bond Registrar may require that those charges, if any, be paid before it begins the procedure for the exchange or transfer of the Bonds. All Bonds issued upon any transfer or exchange shall be the valid obligations of the School District, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same benefits under this Resolution, as the Bonds surrendered upon that transfer or exchange.

<u>Section 9.</u> For purposes of this Resolution, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

"Book-entry form" or "book-entry system" means a form or system under which (i) the beneficial right to payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds may be transferred only through a book entry and (ii) physical Bonds in fully registered form are issued only to a Depository or its nominee as registered owner, with the Bonds "immobilized" to the custody of the Depository, and the book entry is the record that identifies the owners of beneficial interests in those Bonds.

"Depository" means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal law operating and maintaining, together with its participants, a book-entry system to record beneficial ownership of securities and to effect transfers of securities in book-entry form, and includes The Depository Trust Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, New York.

All or any portion of the Bonds may be initially issued to a Depository for use in a bookentry system, and the provisions of this Section shall apply, notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution: (i) there shall be a single Bond of each maturity; (ii) those Bonds shall be registered in the name of the Depository or its nominee, as registered owner, and immobilized in the custody of the Depository; (iii) the beneficial owners in book-entry form shall have no right to receive Bonds in the form of physical securities or certificates; (iv) ownership of beneficial interests in any Bonds in book-entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and operated by the Depository, and transfers of the ownership of beneficial interests shall be made only by the Depository and by book entry; and (v) the Bonds as such shall not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository or to another nominee of a Depository, without further action by the School District. Bond service charges on Bonds in book-entry form registered in the name of a Depository or its nominee shall be payable in same day funds delivered to the Depository or its authorized representative (i) in the case of interest, on each Interest Payment Date, and (ii) in all other cases, upon presentation and surrender of Bonds as provided in this Resolution.

The Bond Registrar may, with the approval of the School District, enter into an agreement with the beneficial owner or registered owner of any Bond in the custody of a Depository providing for making all payments to that owner of principal and interest on that Bond or any portion thereof (other than any payment of the entire unpaid principal amount thereof) at a place and in a manner (including wire transfer of federal funds) other than as provided above in this Resolution, without prior presentation or surrender of the Bond, upon any conditions which shall be satisfactory to the Bond Registrar and the School District. That payment in any event shall be made to the person who is the registered owner of that Bond on the date that principal is due, or, with respect to the payment of interest, as of the applicable date agreed upon as the case may be. The Bond Registrar shall furnish a copy of each of those agreements, certified to be correct by the Bond Registrar, to other paying agents for Bonds and to the School District. Any payment of principal or interest pursuant to such an agreement shall constitute payment thereof pursuant to, and for all purposes of, this Resolution.

If requested, the Treasurer, the Superintendent of the School District (the "Superintendent"), or any other officer of this Board is authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the School District, an agreement among the School District, the Bond Registrar and a Depository to be delivered in connection with the issuance of the Bonds to such Depository for use in a book-entry system.

The School District may decide to discontinue use of the book-entry system through the Depository. In that event, physical Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to the Depository.

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as the Depository for the Bonds for use in a book-entry system, the School District and the Bond Registrar may attempt to establish a securities depository/book-entry relationship with another qualified Depository under this Resolution. If the School District and the Bond Registrar do not or are unable to do so, the School District and the Bond Registrar, after the Bond Registrar has made provision for notification of the beneficial owners by the then Depository, shall permit withdrawal of the Bonds from the Depository and authenticate and deliver bond certificates in fully registered form to the assigns of the Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including costs of printing and delivering definitive Bonds), if the event is not the result of action or inaction by the School District or the Bond Registrar, of those persons requesting such issuance.

<u>Section 10.</u> There shall be and is hereby levied annually on all the taxable property in the School District, in addition to all other taxes and outside the ten mill limitation, a direct tax (the "Debt Service Levy") for each year during which any of the Bonds are outstanding for the purpose of providing, and in an amount which is sufficient to provide, funds to pay interest upon the Bonds as and when the same falls due and to provide a fund for the repayment of the principal of the Bonds at maturity or upon redemption. The Debt Service Levy shall not be less than the interest and sinking fund tax required by Article XII, Section 11 of the Ohio Constitution.

Section 11. The Debt Service Levy shall be and is hereby ordered computed, certified, levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same officers, in the same manner, and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for each of such years are certified, extended and collected. The Debt Service Levy shall be placed before and in preference to all other items and for the full amount thereof. The funds derived from the Debt Service Levy shall be placed in a separate and distinct fund, which shall be irrevocably pledged for the payment of the premium, if any, and interest on and principal of the Bonds when and as the same fall due. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the School District determines that funds will be available from other sources for the payment of the Bonds in any year, the amount of the Debt Service Levy for such year shall be reduced by the amount of funds which will be so available, and the School District shall appropriate such funds to the payment of the Bonds in accordance with law.

<u>Section 12.</u> The Treasurer shall sell the Bonds to Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated or to such other purchaser or purchasers (collectively, the "Original Purchaser") as the Treasurer shall designate in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer at the purchase price set forth in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer plus interest accrued, if any, to the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Original Purchaser. The Treasurer, the Superintendent, the President and any other officer of this Board, or any of them individually, are authorized to execute on behalf of the Board a bond purchase agreement with the Original Purchaser, setting forth the conditions under which the Bonds are to be sold and delivered, which agreement shall be in such form, not inconsistent with the terms of this Resolution, as the Treasurer shall determine.

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, except the premium and accrued interest thereon, shall be used for the purpose aforesaid and for no other purpose. Any accrued interest received from such sale shall be transferred to the bond retirement fund to be applied to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, or other obligations of the School District, as permitted by law. Any premium received from the sale of the Bonds may be used to pay the financing costs of the Bonds within the meaning of Ohio Revised Code Section 133.01(K) or be deposited into the bond retirement fund.

<u>Section 13.</u> The State Department of Education is requested, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 3317.18, to approve an agreement among the State, the School District, and the Bond Registrar providing for the withholding of deposit of funds otherwise due to the School District under Ohio Revised Code Chapter 3317 for the payment of debt charges on all or any portion or series of the Bonds. The President, the Superintendent, and the Treasurer are authorized to prepare and file with the State an application for such approval and to execute and deliver on behalf of the Board any and all documents, certificates, forms and agreements that are in their judgment necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, if the Treasurer deems such agreement to be in the best interest of the School District.

<u>Section 14.</u> The Treasurer may determine to issue all or any series or portion of the Bonds as obligations that the interest thereon is excluded from the bondholders' gross income for federal income tax purposes, and the following provisions of this Section shall apply to such Bonds (or series or portions thereof):

The Board covenants that it will comply with the requirements of all existing and future laws which must be satisfied in order that interest on the Bonds is and will continue to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, including without limitation restrictions on the use of the property financed with the proceeds of the Bonds so that the Bonds will not constitute "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). The Board further covenants that it will restrict the use of the proceeds of the Bonds in such manner and to such extent, if any, as may be necessary, after taking into account reasonable expectations at the time the Bonds are issued, so that they will not constitute arbitrage bonds under Section 148 of the Code and the regulations prescribed thereunder (the "Regulations").

The Treasurer, or any other officer of this Board, is authorized and directed (a) to make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval or waiver on behalf of the Board with respect to the Bonds as permitted or required to be made or given under the federal income tax laws, for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or the status of the Bonds or interest thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense of such compliance, reducing any rebate amount or any payment of penalties, or making any payments of special amounts in lieu of making computations to determine, or paying, any excess earnings as rebate, or obviating those amounts or payments, as determined by the Treasurer, which action shall be in writing and signed by the Treasurer, or any other officer of this Board, on behalf of the Board; (b) to take any and all actions, make or obtain calculations, and make or give reports, covenants and certifications of and on behalf of the Board as may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the Bonds; and (c) to give an appropriate certificate on behalf of the Board, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the facts, estimates and circumstances, and reasonable expectations of the Board pertaining to Section 148 and the Regulations, and the representations, warranties and covenants of the Board regarding compliance by the Board with Sections 141 through 150 of the Code and the Regulations.

The Treasurer shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to the use and investment of all proceeds of the Bonds sufficient to permit, to the maximum extent possible and presently foreseeable, the School District to comply with any federal law or regulation now or hereafter having applicability to the Bonds that relates to the use of such proceeds, which limits the amount of bond proceeds that may be invested on an unrestricted yield or requires the School District to rebate arbitrage profits to the United States Department of the Treasury. The Treasurer is authorized and directed to file such reports with, and rebate arbitrage profits to, the United States Department of the Treasury, to the extent that any federal law or regulation having applicability to the Bonds requires any such reports or rebates.

<u>Section 15.</u> The Treasurer is authorized to make appropriate arrangements, if the Treasurer deems it in the best interest of the School District, for the issuance of a municipal bond insurance policy with respect to all or any portion or series of the Bonds, including executing and delivering a commitment therefor and certificates and other documents in connection therewith and paying the bond insurance premium related thereto. All additional provisions required to be authorized by this Board for the issuance of a municipal bond insurance policy shall be contained in the Certificate of Fiscal Officer.

Section 16. The distribution of an Official Statement of the School District, in preliminary and final form, relating to the original issuance of the Bonds is authorized if the Treasurer determines that it is necessary or advisable to prepare and distribute an Official Statement in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds. If the Treasurer so determines, then the Treasurer, the Superintendent and the President, and any other officer of this Board, are authorized and directed to negotiate, prepare and execute, on behalf of the School District and in their official capacity, the Official Statement and any supplements thereto as so executed in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds, and they are authorized and directed to advise the Original Purchaser in writing regarding limitations on the use of the Official Statement and any supplements thereto for purposes of marketing or reoffering the Bonds as they deem necessary or appropriate to protect the interests of the School District. The Treasurer, the Superintendent and the President are each authorized to execute and deliver, on behalf of the School District and in their official capacities, such certificates in connection with the accuracy of an Official Statement, in either preliminary or final form, and any supplements thereto as may, in their judgment, be necessary or appropriate.

<u>Section 17.</u> The Treasurer is authorized to obtain or update a rating or ratings on the Bonds and the School District if the Treasurer determines that it is necessary or advisable in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds. If the Treasurer so determines, then the Treasurer, Superintendent, and any officer of this Board are authorized and directed to take all steps necessary to obtain such rating or ratings, including paying the rating fees imposed by any rating agency and paying any travel expenses relating to obtaining such rating or ratings.

<u>Section 18.</u> The Treasurer is authorized to make the deposits and fund transfers required or necessary to accomplish the intent of this Resolution.

<u>Section 19.</u> The Board approves of the appointment of the law firm of Bricker & Eckler LLP, which shall become known as Bricker Graydon LLP as of April 3, 2023, to serve as Bond Counsel to the School District with respect to the issuance of the Bonds. The fees to be paid to such firm shall be subject to review and approval by the Treasurer and shall not exceed the fees customarily charged for such services.

<u>Section 20.</u> The officer having charge of the minutes of the Board and any other officers of the Board, or any of them individually, are authorized and directed to prepare and certify a true transcript of proceedings pertaining to the Bonds and to furnish a copy of such transcript to the Original Purchaser. Such transcript shall include certified copies of all proceedings and records of the Board relating to the power and authority of the School District to issue the Bonds and certificates as to matters within their knowledge or as shown by the books and records under their custody and control, including but not limited to a general certificate of the Treasurer and a no-litigation certificate of the President and the Treasurer, and such certified copies and certificates shall be deemed representations of the School District as to the facts stated therein. Except for the procedure for authenticating the Bonds set forth herein, documents (including this Resolution) executed, scanned and transmitted electronically and electronic and digital signatures shall be deemed original signatures for said transcript of the Bonds, for the purposes of this Resolution, and for all matters related thereto, with any such scanned, electronic, and digital signatures having the same legal effect as original signatures.

The Treasurer, the Superintendent, the President, and any other officer of this Board are authorized and directed to take such action (including, but not limited to, hiring such professionals and consultants as may be needed to facilitate the issuance of the Bonds) and to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Board, such additional instruments, agreements, certificates, and other documents as may be in their discretion necessary or appropriate in order to carry out the intent of this Resolution. Such documents shall be in the form not substantially inconsistent with the terms of this Resolution, as they in their discretion shall deem necessary or appropriate.

<u>Section 21.</u> It is hereby found and determined that all acts, conditions and things necessary to be done precedent to and in the issuing of the Bonds in order to make them legal, valid and binding obligations of the School District have happened, been done and been performed in regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith, credit and revenue of the School District are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal and interest thereof at maturity; and that no limitation of indebtedness or taxation, either statutory or constitutional, has been exceeded in issuing the Bonds.

<u>Section 22.</u> It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of the Board concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of the Board, and that all deliberations of the Board and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements, including Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22.

Section 23. The Treasurer is directed to forward a certified copy of this Resolution to the County Fiscal Officer.

AYES: Hertz, Cevasco, Doss NAYS: None

2023-12

D. Superintendent's Considerations and Recommendations

It was moved by Mr. Cevasco, seconded by Mrs. Hertz, to approve the following actions, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent:

1. Ohio High School Athletic Association

Authorize 2023-2024 membership in the Ohio High School Athletic Association for Copley High School and Copley-Fairlawn Middle School. It is agreed that these schools will conduct their athletics in accordance with the Constitution, Bylaws, Regulations, Interpretations and Decisions of the Ohio High School Athletic Association, as presented.

- 2. Memorandums for College Credit Plus
 - a. Approve the memorandum of understanding between Stark State College and the Copley-Fairlawn City School District to provide instructional services to qualifying students for the 2023-2024 school year. (College Credit Plus)
 - b. Approve the memorandum of understanding between Kent State University and the Copley-Fairlawn City School District to provide instructional services to qualifying students for the 2023-2024 school year. (College Credit Plus)
 - c. Approve the memorandum of understanding between The University of Akron and the Copley-Fairlawn City School District to provide instructional services to qualifying students for the 2023-2024 school year. (College Credit Plus)
 - d. Approve the memorandum of understanding between Cuyahoga Community College and the Copley-Fairlawn City School District to provide instructional services to qualifying students for the 2023-2024 school year. (College Credit Plus)
- 3. ESY (Extended School Year) Contracts
 - a. Approve the 2023 ESY Agreement between LLA Therapy and Copley-Fairlawn City Schools.
- 4. Ohio Schools Resolution

Approve the Ohio Schools Council Resolution, as presented.

5. Overnight Field Trips

Approve the following overnight field trips:

- a. Copley High School Music Department to New York City from March 13, 2024 through March 17, 2024 or March 20, 2024 through March 24, 2024.
- b. Copley High School Quiz Bowl team to Atlanta, Georgia for the National Tournament from May 26, 2023 through May 29, 2023.
- 6. In-Lieu of Transportation

Approve in-lieu-of transportation payments for the 2022-2023 school year for the following students:

<u>Old Trail School</u> Rattansi, Aydin Aliraza Soni, Arjun Beasley, London

Western Reserve Academy Soni, Anika

7. Class I Literature Adoption

Adopt the following Class I Literature List, as presented:

I am Malala written by Malala Yousafzai

- 8. Personnel
 - a. Certified
 - 1. Grant an unpaid leave of absence for Danielle Webel beginning January 4, 2023 through January 13, 2023
 - b. Classified
 - 1. Accept the resignation of the following:

Balser, Melissa	Cafeteria Worker, effective January 21, 2023
Gombert, Mary	Playground/Cafeteria Monitor, effective January 27, 2023

2. Employ the following classified staff for the 2022-2023 school year contingent upon subsequent receipt by the Board of Education of reports from FBI and BCII and official documentation of any required licensure, course work, degrees, and testing appropriate to the position for which the candidate is to be hired:

Balser, Melissa	Kitchen Manager, Step 6, effective January 23, 2023
Ouedraogo, Philemon	Bus Aide, effective January 17, 2023
Rauscher, Susan	Bus Driver, Step 5, effective
	January 17, 2023
Shuttlesworth, Sheila	Cafeteria Worker, Step 2, effective
	February 6, 2023

3. Employ the following substitute personnel for the 2022-2023 school year, contingent upon subsequent receipt by the Board of Education of reports from FBI and BCII and official documentation of any required licensure, course work, degrees, and testing appropriate to the position for which the candidate is to be hired:

Agler, Adele	Special Needs Assistant, Educational Assistant, Office Assistant
Gombert, Mary	Bus Aide, Playground/Cafeteria
	Monitor, effective
	January 30, 2023
Hatch, Janice	Special Needs Assistant,
	Educational Assistant, effective
	January 27, 2023
Troxell, Mark	Bus Driver, effective January 30, 2023
Roback, Christopher	Bus Driver, effective February 22, 2023
Reid, Rachel	Playground monitor

- 4. Grant an unpaid leave of absence for Charlynn Coleman beginning January 24, 2023 thru February 23, 2023.
- 5. Rescind Resolution 2023-06 (H)(2)(b)(2) Schumacher, Janice
- c. Supplemental
 - Rescind Resolution 2022-90 (E)(5)(c)(1) Ballinger, Lincoln Rescind Resolution 2022-90 (E)(5)(c)(1) Davis, Peter

Rescind Resolution 2022-90 (E)(5)(c)(1) Hoffman, Justin Rescind Resolution 2022-90 (E)(5)(c)(1) Kromalic, John

2. Employ the following for the 2022-2023 school year contingent upon subsequent receipt by the Board of Education of reports from FBI and BCII and official documentation of any required licensure, course work, degrees, and testing appropriate to the position for which the candidate is to be hired:

Athletic Coaches

Hoffman, Justin	CHS, Baseball, Assistant Coach
Shade, Aiden	CHS, Baseball, 9 th Grade Coach
Villarreal, Christopher	CHS, Track, Boys Assistant Coach
Stoyer, Curtis	CHS, Track, Boys Assistant Coach (50%)
Kromalic, John	CHS, Track, Girls Head Coach
Traylor, Blake	CHS, Track, Girls Assistant Coach
Traylor, Bryce	CHS, Track, Girls Assistant Coach
Davis, Peter	CHS, Lacrosse, JV Coach (Volunteer)

AYES: Cevasco, Hertz, Doss NAYS: None

F. <u>New Business</u>

None

2023-13

G. <u>Adjournment</u> It was moved by Mr. Cevasco, seconded by Mrs. Hertz, to adjourn the meeting (5:53 p.m.)

AYES: Cevasco, Hertz, Doss NAYS: None

President

Treasurer